
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 1 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION (IGC) COMMITTEE MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 29, 2012/11 :00 A.M. 

Call to Order at 11 :00 A.M. I Roll Call 

Present: Mark A. Kutney -- Town Manager, Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Tom Goltzene - Town Council Member, Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Clete J. Saunier, P.E. - District Administrator, LGWCD 
John Ryan - Board Secretary-Treasurer, LGWCD 

Also Present: Lynnette R. Ballard -- Administrative Secretary, LGWCD 
Pearla Underwood - Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Pledge of Allegiance I Invocation led by Mr. Saunier. 

SUBJECT: AGENDA APPROVAL. Mr. Saunier requested the addition of the following 
agenda item under Consent Agenda: Approval of January 25, 2012 IGC 
Committee Meeting Minutes. 

Mr. Kutney requested the addition of an agenda item under Item #3, 
Presentations: Cassie Suchy, "B" Road, Regarding Speed Humps on North "C" 
Road. . 

Mr. Saunier asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or substitutions 
to the Agenda. There were none. 

MOTION: Mr. Ryan made a motion to approve the agenda as amended. Mr. Kutney 
seconded the motion. 

ACTION: MOTION PASSED 4 TO o. 

Mr. Saunier encouraged other members of the IGC Comn~littee to serve as 
meeting facilitators in the future. 

Mr. Kutney asked whether any guidelines were established when the IGC 
Committee first began. Mr. Saunier replied in the negative. 

Mr. Kutney suggested the IGC Con1rrlittee develop and formalize a policy as to 
the meeting facilitator. 

Mr. Ryan suggested Mr. Kutney and Mr. Saunier facilitate the meetings on a 
rotational basis (alternating meetings). 

1 



IT WAS THE CONSENSUS OF THE IGC COMMITTEE THAT MR. KUTNEY 
AND MR. SAUNIER WOULD FACILITATE THE IGC COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
ON A ROTATIONAL BASIS (ALTERNATING MEETINGS). 

Mr. Kutney noted the Town is in the process of purchasing a video camera to 
video tape future Town Council meetings. 

SUBJECT: PRESENTATION BY CASSIE SUCHY RE: SPEED HUMPS. The IGC 
Committee invited Ms. Cassie Suchy to make her presentation to the IGC 
Committee. 

Cassie Suchy, 3685 "B" Road, appeared before the IGC Committee to discuss 
the speed humps on North "C" Road. She stated it was her understanding 
there would be 22 speed humps, and stated that is a significant number of 
speed humps. The delay is 3-5 seconds per hump for fire-rescue vehicles and 
1 0 seconds per hump by ambulance. There are issues with these speed 
humps, and perhaps there should not be 22 speed hunlps for public safety 
reasons. She stated Fire-Rescue personnel expressed their concern to her 
about the speed humps on "C" Road. 

Mr. Ryan explained that the number of speed humps is dictated by the spacing, 
and the spaCing is at the outer limit of the recommendation by the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers, which was part of the design criteria. The District 
has made every effort, along with terri plates, to control the size and shape of 
the speed humps that are being installed. 

Kerry Gierscher, "A" Road expressed her concern that there will be 22 speed 
humps on North "C" Road in a two-mile stretch. She inquired why the speed 
humps could not be spaced 750 feet apart. Mr. Ryan replied that the District is 
trying to control the speed limit. 

Angel Gierscher, "A" Road stated the speed humps on South "C" Road are 
inconsistent and need to be corrected. 

Mr. Ryan stated although the speed humps might be an inconvenience, they 
provide safety. 

Board Member Frank Schiola stated the OGEM contractor is in the process of 
correcting the speed humps that were installed on South "C" Road. He also 
noted if asphalt was being placed on the road, there would not be a problem 
with the speed humps; however, the aggregate being used is difficult to work 
with, and there is a learning curve on behalf of the OGEM contractor. Mr. 
Schiola stated the OGEM road surface and the speed humps will provide a 
safer roadway. 

2 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

CITIZEN ACTION CENTER WEB-BASED PROGRAM. Mr. Kutney stated the 
Town is in the process of considering vendors for this type of service. The 
Town recently issued purchase orders for the development of a new website 
and for hosting of the website under piggyback provisions. Before the Town 
moves forward with the citizen action center web-based program, a website has 
to be created. 

Mr. Saunier stated he has spoken to Mr. Kutney about obtaining the same 
contractor to handle the District's website makeover, upon approval by the 
Board of Supervisors. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

IGC COMMITTEE MEMBER TERMS OF SERVICE (DISTRICT UPDATE). Mr. 
Saunier stated at the last Board of Supervisors meeting, the Board agreed to 
four-month terms of service on the IGC Committee to coincide with the Town's 
four month terms of service on a rotational basis. 

Mr. Saunier stated that because one Board Member is unable to attend any of 
the IGC Committee meetings due to work conflicts, there are only four Board 
Members that actually serve on the IGC Committee. 

Mr. Kutney stated Town Council Member Ron Jarriel requested additional 
discussion on this item, which will be presented to the Town Council at its first 
meeting in March 2012. 

MOTION: No motion was necessary. 
ACTION: NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

SUBJECT: CONSENT AGENDA - APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM JANUARY 4, 2012 
IGC COMMITTEE MEETING. Mr. Saunier asked if there were any additions, 
deletions, or comments to the minutes from the January 4, 2012 IGC 
Committee meeting. There were none. 

CONSENT AGENDA - APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM JANUARY 25,2012 
IGC COMMITTEE MEETING. Mr. Saunier asked if there were any additions, 
deletions, or comments to the minutes from the January 25, 2012 IGC 
Committee meeting. 

3 



Mr. Kutney noted a change to be made on Page 5 under the subject, "IGC 
Committee Member Terms of Service" in the phrase, "Mr. Kutney asked Mr. 
Jarriel whether he would like this issue to be placed on the next Town Council 
meeting agenda. Mr. Jarriel replied in the negative and stated he likes the four
month term for the Town Council Members." 

Mr. Kutney clarified that he asked Mr. Jarriel whether he wanted to raise this 
issue at the next Town Council meeting or whether Mr. Jarriel wanted Mr. 
Kutney to raise it at the next Town Council meeting. 

Mr. Saunier noted a change to be made on Page 2 under the subject, uTown
District Joint Workshop Meeting - January 14, 2012". The amount of 
$125.00 for rental of the Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School Cafetorium 
should be changed to $275.00. There were no additional comments regarding 
the rninutes from the January 25, 2012 IGC Committee Meeting. 

Mr. Saunier requested a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended. 

MOTION: Mr. Ryan made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, including the minutes 
from the January 4, 2012 and January 25, 2012 IGC Committee Meetings, as 
amended. Mr. Kutney seconded the motion. 

ACTION: MOTION PASSED 4 TO O. 

SUBJECT: TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD AND "0" ROAD -
UPDATE. Mr. Kutney stated the Town Council, at its last meeting, approved 
the traffic signal at Okeechobee Boulevard and "0" Road. He spoke with Jim 
Noth of Erdman Anthony regarding this issue and whether Erdman Anthony 
could provide additional services (piggyback) from the County's contract. The 
Town needs to be cautious of CCNA issues with regard to the cost, etc. Mr. 
Noth indicated that he does not have a signal contract with the County at this 
time, so the Town may need to consider another entity. The signal would cost 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

approximately $250,000.00. ' 

Mr. Kutney stated that Mr. Noth indicated that when a signal is installed, the 
County may require additional lane improvements, intersection improvements, 
cross street improvements, etc. This would become a concern because if the 
project goes over $300,000.00 and the consultant's work is roughly, $35,000.00; 
this might put the Town in a situation where it would be required to issue an 
RFQ (Request for Qualifications) for engineering firms .. Mr. Kutney stated he is 
still in the process of researching this issue and he will convey the same 
comn1ents to the Town Council at its next regular meeting. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

4 



SUBJECT: EQUESTRIAN TRAILS COMMITTEE AND GRANT APPLICATION - UPDATE. 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

Mr. Kutney stated the grant application was approved by the Town Council at its 
last meeting, and the Council authorized Town Staff to move forward. The 
Town is requesting $250,000.00 of the 80-20 match. The Town's grant writer 
continues to work on the application which has to be filed between March 15th 

and 31 st
. The Town is in the process of completing the application at this time. 

Mr. Saunier inquired whether the Town's grant writer has everything she needs 
from the District, and Mr. Kutney replied in the affirmative. Mr. Saunier inquired 
whether the grant application would include the Sixth Court North/Collecting 
Canal Road process. Mr. Kutney replied in the negative, and stated that would 
be a separate project. Mr. Kutney explained that this grant will attempt to allow 
a portion of the monies to be used for the overall planning and design of the 
entire system; with the intention to start working on the equestrian trails. 

Mr. Ryan stated the Town paid Calvin-Giordano for the MREG Study, which 
was intended to be a basic design for· the equestrian trails throughout 
Loxahatchee Groves. He inquired whether this is part of the work that the 
Town's grant writer is coordinating. Mr. Kutney replied that the grant writer has 
considered the MREG Study as one of many sources. Mr. Saunier asked 
whether the MREG Study has been adopted by the Town Council. Mr. Kutney 
replied in the affirmative. 

Mr. Saunier asked about the process in the event there was a change to the 
Town's MREG Study. Mr. Kutney replied that if something was inconsistent 
with the MREG Study, it would have to be brought before the Town Council for 
approval. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

FUTURE TOWN-DISTRICT JOINT WORKSHOPS. Mr. Saunier stated the 
Board of Supervisors directed him to bring this issue to the IGC Committee to 
determine whether any additional joint workshop meetings need to be 
scheduled, and whether the IGC Committee would make recommendations on 
the discussion topics, or whether the IGC Committee would continue joint-issue 
discussions recommended by. the Board of Supervisors or the Town Council. 

Mr. Kutney stated the Town Council has indicated that they are interested in 
making sure the IGC Committee follow through with the joint workshops that 
had been discussed in September-October 2011. He will raise this issue at the 
next Town Council meeting and request further direction from the Town 
Council. 

5 



Mr. Kutney stated that the third-party facilitator compiled a list of ancillary or 
associated issues in conjunction with other items the IGC Committee had 
discussed. There is a potential agenda set up, and it is simply a matter of 
coordinating future joint workshops between the Town Council and the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Mr. Goltzene stated he was not pleased with the January 14, 2012 joint 
workshop meeting. He wanted the workshops to be similar to the IGC 
Committee meetings in which the two boards could discuss a couple of issues 
that are important. One of those issues is the relationship between the Town 
and District in the future, especially as the roads become improved with OGEM 
and both .entities look toward a greater level of economic cooperation between 
the Town and District relative to those roads. 

Mr. Goltzene stated Town Council Members and Board Members have 
suggested as the roads become improved with OGEM, there should be a 
process that turns the roads over to the Town. He stated the IGC Committee 
needs to determine what the term "turning the roads over to the Town" really 
means. 

Mr. Goltzene stated there needs to be some joint workshop meetings between 
the boards, or the IGC Committee meetings need' to be used more intently to 
discuss certain issues and then bring those issues back to the Town Council 
and Board of Supervisors. 

Mr. Saunier stated the Town and District were under the impression that the 
January 14, 2012 joint workshop meeting would be held in a completely 
different manner than what it was. However, the third-party facilitator led the 
meeting in an entirely different direction. 

Mr. Saunier agreed that there needs to be a focused discussion with regard to 
the Town's and District's responsibilities. In terms of assuming that the OGEM 
roads will be turned over to the Town, that would be complicated on many 
levels, especially from a legal standpoint (Le., exist as combined drainage and 
roadway right-of-way). 

Mr. Ryan stated the IGC Conlmittee could create a preliminary list of discussion 
topics including broad issues and relevant specific issues. 

Mr. Ryan stated with regard to road responsibilities, he thought the Town clearly 
has traffic control responsibility on all District roads and some degree of 
specificity with respect to the OGEM roads because of the Local Bill. 

Mr. Ryan stated the original interlocal agreement between the Town and District 
stated they were combining their respective authorities for purposes of 
collecting gas tax reven~e. Mr. Saunier noted the League of Cities did not 

6 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

agree with this. Mr. Ryan stated the original ILA stated that because the Town 
accepted responsibility for all of the non-District roads, then the District retained 
its authority over the District roads to the extent that it needed to in order to 
maintain assessment rights. This created a clarification that any maintenance 
'monies associated with District roads and any gas tax capital monies would be 
part of the District's share of those revenues; any monies associated with the 
non-District roads would be the exclusive province of the Town. This broke 
down when certain Town Council members who wanted to take over the District 
rescinded the agreement on a legally questionable basis based on a faulty 
support memo provided by the same law firm that currently represents the 
Town, however, by a different attorney. Once that was overturned, the District 
appealed to the Town for a logical share of gas tax funds. 

Mr. Ryan stated the third-party facilitator was supposed to prepare a report 
regarding the January 14, 2012 joint workshop meeting. Mr. Kutney replied that 
he contacted the facilitator and even though it was not included in his contract, 
the facilitator stated he would provide this report. 

Mr. Ryan stated the District's Attorney, Mary Viator, was going to provide a 
legal memorandum regarding the various steps in combining the District and 
the Town. Mr. Saunier stated Ms. Viator is going to contact the Town's 
Attorney, Mike Cirullo, to discuss this issue. Mr. Ryan stated the 
aforementioned issues should become agenda items for a follow-up workshop 
meeting, or perhaps these issues should be worked out by the IGC Committee. 

Mr. Goltzene suggested these issues be worked out by the IGC Committee. 
Mr. Goltzene stated once this is done, the agenda for the workshop meeting 
could be established. The agenda is similar to the workshop meetings with 
Palm Beach State College and Callery-Judge Groves Where there is a real 
conversation between the two boards and not an opportunity for the public to 
comment. A workshop is between the boards, and is not a discussion session. 

Mr. Kutneyagreed that the IGC Corrlmittee could discuss these issues, but it is 
also a matter of what the two boards direct the IGC Committee to do. He stated 
the Town Council has requested he provide them with a report following the 
IGC Committee meetings. 

No motion was necessary. 
IT WAS THE CONSENSUS OF THE IGC COMMITTEE THAT FUTURE JOINT 
WORKSHOP MEETING AGENDAS WILL BE CREATED BY THE IGC 
COMMITTEE AND PRESENTED TO rHE TOWN COUNCIL AND BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS FOR REVIEW, APPROVAL, AND ESTABLISHMENT OF 
MEETING DATES. 

7 



SUBJECT: MODIFICATIONS TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
DISTRICT AND TOWN. 

1. Priority Response to Town Requests When Current Road Resurfacing Work 
is Complete (Established Early April 2012) 

2. Documentation and Invoice Format Provided to the Town 

3. Work Schedule for Maintaining Certain Town Roads and Trails 

4. Budget Estimates (Town Expenses and District Revenue) for Fiscal Year 
2012-2013 

Mr. Saunier requested the IGC Committee discuss Item #5A 1, "Documentation 
and Invoice Format Provided to the Town" as the first item. The IGC 
Committee agreed. 

Mr. Saunier stated it was his understanding that Mr. Goltzene had some issues 
with regard to back-up documentation as it applies to the District's current billing 
process to the Town. 

Mr. Goltzene stated that he and Pearla Underwood have determined that the 
District's backup documentation for billing purposes is not sufficient for the 
Town to pay the invoices. There is no specificity with regard to dates, efforts 
expended, costs of materials to be reimbursed, subcontractors, etc. There also 
needs to bedocun1entation indicating that any contractors and/or 
subcontractors have been, or will be, paid. 

Mr. Goltzene requested improved communication between the District and the 
Town with regard to· service requests. In the event the District Field 
Superintendent determines it is not necessary to perforn1 the service requested 
on a particular road, the District should advise the Town of this determination. 

Mr. Kutney stated if the Town is going to authorize the expenditure of public 
funds, they want to be sure everything is in order. Mr. Kutney invited Pearla 
Underwood to speak to the IGC Committee. 

Ms. Underwood stated Mr. Goltzene is not the only Town Council Member that 
is requesting additional backup documentation from the District. 

Mr. Ryan suggested any road that has several landowners that regularly use 
the road to connect to a District road needs to be placed on some type of basic 
service schedule. Mr. Kutney stated a basic schedule would be much easier to 
accommodate after the Town's new website is created. 

8 



Mr. Ryan stated a basic road maintenance schedule would make it easier for 
the Town to budget expenses and the District to budget revenue. Mr. Kutney 
agreed. Mr. Ryan further stated when the OGEM road projects are complete in 
April-May 2012, there will be a lot of excess capacity that will allow the District 
to more regularly respond to the Town's desire with regard to the non-District 
roads. 

Mr. Goltzene suggested the IGC Comrnittee review the interlocal agreement 
between the Town and District for maintenance of Town roads. Mr. Saunier 
agreed. 

Mr. Saunier explained that, because of the increased volume of traffic on a 
given road, there is a physical need to maintain a consistency that is safe and 
driveable, which would require more attention than a road that has a n1inimal 
traffic volume. 

Ms. Underwood stated there are residents in Loxahatchee Groves that are not 
landowners. They are tenants, but they are still voters and the Town has a 
responsibility toward them. Mr. Goltzene stated even if they are not citizens 
and they live in the Town, they are residents and the Town has a responsibility 
to them. 

Mr. Goltzene suggested the IGC Committee review the Town-District gas tax 
interlocal agreement at the next IGC Committee in an effort to determine 
whether any changes need to be made. 

Mr. Saunier stated that the IGC Committee will review and revise the Town
District ILA for Town Road Maintenance at the next IGC Committee meeting. 
The IGC Committee will also consider a revised ILA for District road 
maintenance, looking at the 2007 interlocal agreement. 

Mr. Saunier asked Ms. Underwood, for billing purposes, whether the Town 
needs to know the caller's name, address, phone number, when the District 
responded to it, etc. Ms. Underwood replied that Town Council Member Jim 
Rockett has requested a list of all requests for service that came to the District. 
She stated the Town Council Members need something in writing Signed by the 
District Administrator and the Superintendent stating those services were 
provided and the District is attesting that those services were completed. 

Mr. Ryan stated the District's statutory responsibility is the District's roads and 
canals first. Regarding the non-District roads, the District will be able to perform 
an entirely different level of service on these once the OGEM road projects are 
con1plete. 

Mr. Goltzene stated it might be a good idea for Mr. Saunier to make a proposal 
to the Town Council that states due to the District's reduced responsibility and 

9 



existing staffing levels, the District has the ability to perform the service for the 
Town, and ask whether the Town would like the District to do it. 

Mr. Goltzene stated the Town is currently working on cutting back extensive 
vegetation, including District roads, intersections, etc. The Town, in conjunction 
with its capital improvement plan, may want to use District Staff and/or other 
contractors to perform vegetation trimming, depending upon the ability to do so. 
There are several roads that are in need of attention and then they would be 
fine for a long tin1e, such as Pineapple Drive. He stated there are future 
maintenance items and capital improvement items that need to be addressed. 

Mr. Goltzene asked Mr. Saunier whether he would like the District to perform 
mowing and hedging services. Mr. Saunier replied in the affirmative. Mr. 
Kutney suggested Mr. Saunier set up a process for mowing and hedging 
services. He stated the Town Council gave him direction to allow the District 
the opportunity to perform these services. If the District is unable to perform 
these services, the Town would need to use an outside contractor. Mr. Saunier 
stated once the initial clearing of the heavily-overgrown vegetation is done, the 
District can perform these services on a regular basis, e.g., four times a year. 

Mr. Saunier stated the District recently submitted a cost estimate and is waiting 
for Town authorization to trim the vegetation along 22nd Road North, off "C" 
Road. 

SUBJECT: SETTING OF NEXT MEETING· DATE AND TIME. The IGC Committee agreed 
to schedule its next meeting for Wednesday, March 28, 2012 at 11 :00 a.m. at 
the District office. Mr. Kutney will facilitate the meeting. 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

The next deSignated Board of Supervisors representative is David DeMarois 
(January 2012 through April 2012). 

The next designated Town Council representative is Ron Jarriel (February 2012 
through May 2012). 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

MEMBER COMMENTS 

Mr. Ryan inquired whether there was a significant update on the OGEM road 
projects. Mr. Saunier replied the OGEM contractor has experienced a minor 
setback with the paving machine but is still within the contract requirements with 
regard to the project deadline. 

10 



Mr. Goltzene inquired whether there is a possibility of the Town piggybacking 
off the District's OGEM contract to extend the OGEM surface on Collecting 
Canal Road to "B" Road and "0" Road. 

Mr. Goltzene asked whether the roads that interface with Okeechobee 
Boulevard could have 100 feet of OGEM road surface at their approach to 
Okeechobee Boulevard. Mr. Saunier replied it rnight be possible. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no public comments. 

The meeting was adjourned by the Committee at 1 :55 p.m. 

John Ryan, Secreta reasurer 
Loxahatchee G roves Water Control District 

te . Saunier, District Administrator 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District 

11 

Mark A. Kutney, Town Manage 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

ember 


